MONOSEM



MONOSEM DM-5750

Startup Guide & Manual

Table of Contents

Introduction
Technical Specifications
Installation
Mounting4
Monitor Connections
Operation
Home Screen
Alarm History Area7
Ground Speed8
Console Information
Console (Row-Specific) Information9
Bar Graph
Seeds Page 12
Flow Page
Counts 16
Set Up 17
Quick Set
Display Assignments
Section Assignments
Product Sensors
Product Sensor-Seeds
Product Sensor-Flow
Accessory Sensors
Options
Speed Input
External Speed Calibration Procedure 32
Systems Info
Help
Console Pinouts

Introduction

The DM-5750 will monitor seed population, seed blockage, and up to 2 rates of liquid flow. The maximum number of combined monitored inputs is 36. The monitor has three independent acre counters and two liquid counters to track the applied volume.

Technical Specifications

Operating Voltage	9 - 36 V DC
Operating Temperature	-20°C - 70°C (-4°F - 158°F)
Storage Temperature	-40°C - 85°C (-40°F - 185°F)
Size	27.30 cm W x 16.5 cm H x 5.08 cm D
	(10.75 in W x 6.5 in H x 2 in D)
Weight	3.08kg (6.8lbs)
Sensors	Compatible with Vanguard™ and most other seed sensors
Standard Mounting	RAM Mounts® 1 ½ in ball mounting
Alarm Adjustment	Five levels
Backlight Adjustment	Five increments plus Day/Night Mode

Installation

Mounting

Mount RAM 238U to back of monitor using the supplied hardware.



Monitor Connections

There are three connectors used in operating the monitor.



Power Harness

The monitor is powered through the switched power wire in a 3-pin Amp convenience port. Secure the harness so that it is routed to allow for strain relief at the connectors and has enough slack to accommodate any movement of the harness.

Cab Harness

Attach the cab harness to the monitor and tighten the jack screws in each connector to

1.7 - 2.3 Nm (15 - 20 in lbs). Secure the harness so that it is routed to allow for strain relief at the connectors and has enough slack to accommodate any movement of the harness.

The cab harness attaches to the implement with a 37-pin AMP CPC-style connector. The first 32 rows will attach to the fully populated connected labeled "Rows 1-32". If necessary, connect the remaining rows to the connector labeled "Rows 33-36".

Ground Speed Source

Connect the included GPS based ground speed sensor to the 4-pin AMP CPC- style connector on the bottom of the monitor. The speed sensor should be placed with a clear view of the sky in as many directions as possible.

If using a different source for ground speed, connect it to the 4-pin connector and calibrate the monitor following the procedure described in this manual.

Operation

To turn on the monitor, press and release the power button on the rear of the monitor. After a splash screen is displayed, the monitor will bring up the Home Screen.



To turn off the monitor, press and hold the button on the rear of the monitor. A pop-up screen will display and show a countdown timer. Release the button after 3 seconds to turn off the monitor.



Home Screen

The Home screen provides individual row data and options to select summary information.



Screen Navigation

The Navigation buttons are on the right side of the screen. The current screen will be highlighted in red. The available screens are dependent on the implement configuration.



Alarm History Area

Detected faults are displayed along the top edge of the screen. The faults indicate which rows have failed and stay visible when the ground speed goes to zero. Each block shows the sensor, the row number (large number on the left-hand side of the bottom) and the time the sensor is in an error state (small number on the right-hand side of the bottom).



History Pop-Up

To clear the stored faults, touch the History button. In the pop-up screen touch the **Clear Visible** tab to clear the faults shown in the window. Previous faults, that have occurred but not been cleared, will then populate the fault history area. Touching the **Clear All** button will clear all faults.



Alarm Pop-Up

The **Alarm** button controls which alarms are active or disabled from the Home screen. The **Disable All Active** option will temporarily disable and silence all active alarms until they are reactivated. **Enable All Alarms** will re-enable any rows that have been disabled.

The **Show Disabled Alarms** function will display the row and seed type of any row alarms that have been disabled. The menu will change to allow all alarms to be enabled.



The audible alarm can be silenced by pressing anywhere in the alarm history. This will temporarily acknowledge any active faults.



Ground Speed

Ground speed can be toggled between a set Manual speed or External speed source. The green circle indicates the monitor is using the connected External source. *Calibration of this source should be done prior to operation*.



If manual speed is selected, a red dot and speed adjustment buttons are displayed on the screen. The desired speed is adjusted in 0.5 mph increments by using the plus (+) or minus (-) buttons.



A manual speed can also be set by selecting the speed and entering a value in the pop-up window.

Alarm History		Enter I	Manual	Speed	5.0	
Row		5.0		mph	t	
	1	2	2	Back	ew	Home
L L	-	2		DACK	<u>1</u>	Seeds
	4	5		Clear	\$	Quality
	7	8	9	ESC	17 18	Counts
4444				Factor	\$ \$	Setup
19 20 21 22 2	3 24 25	26 27	28 29 3	Enter 30 31 32 33 34	35 36	Demo

To change the speed source, select the green or red icon and select the desired choice in the popup window. The source can also be changed in the implement setup section.

AI	arm	Hi	story										+ 0.5		-).5	5	5.0 ^{ирн}	(•
	Mer	nu S	iele	ectio	on								U						me
			Men	u S	elec	tior	1												əds
Þ																			lity
1								Press	Sele	tion	belov	v							ints
Þ		Radaı	' Spe	ed		Сар	ture S	6cree	n		Powe	er Do	wn			Can	cel		:up
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35	36	De	mo

Console Information

Console (Row-Specific) Information

Individual row information and implement averages are available in the console area of the home page.

Selecting the Per Row icon or selecting a row from the bar graph area will display the row number, population, and the average across the planter.



Selecting the Min/Max icon will display the row number with the minimum or maximum rate and the average rate across the implement.

	Min	Max	Avg	Select
Row	20	19		
Seeds /Acre	31.3	32.8	32.0	
·				~

Selecting the graph icon will display a rolling history of up to 20 seconds of selected input on the desired row.

+100	_				Ro	w 1	1 - 5	see	ds -	20	Se	сH	isto	ry (Gra	ph					Select
+60																					Seed View
+20																					Seed view
-20																-					
-60																					
-100																					
-2	20-1	.9-1	8-1	7-1	6-1	5-1	4-1	3-1	2-1	1-1	0 -9	9 -1	3 - 7	7 -(6 -!	5 -4	1 -3	3-2	2 -1	L 0	

To monitor a different row, select the desired column from the bar graph area.

In a seed blockage only configuration, the view will show the row numbers for the minimum and maximum rates and a historical graph of the selected row.

+100					Rov	v 1	- Se	ed	s Fl	ow	- 20) Se	c H	isto	ory	Gra					ſ	Row
+60																						1.0 W
+20																					Min	7
20																					1.1111	/
-20																						л
100																					мах	4
-100	0-1	9-1	8-1	7-1	6-1	5-1	4-1	3-1	2-1	1-1	0 -9	9 -8	3 -7	7 -(6 -!	5 -4	1 -3	3 -2	2 -1	0		

To switch to a different row, select the desired column from the bar graph area.

When configured with two products or two flow setups, the view selection area changes to show the average rates across the products. Selecting Seeds, Flow 1, or Flow 2 will reveal the view selection icons to see the per row; min, max, and average; or graph view of a selected row or product.

Seed Seeds/Acre	Flow 1 Gallons/Acre	Flow 2 Gallons/Acre	Seeds	Flow 1
32.2	6.0	8.1	Avg	Flow 2

Bar Graph

The bar graph provides a visual indicator of each row compared to the target value or average value when configured for blockage sensors. The center horizontal line represents the target or average value for each rate. Green bars above or below the center line indicate over applying or under applying product within the allowable range of the set limits. Over applying a product above the set limit will result in a yellow bar. Under applying a product below the set limit will display a red bar. If bars are not visible, then the rate is on-target.

₽ ₽	₽ [₽]	P	J [®]	Þ	Þ	Þ	P	P	P
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10

In each bar of the graph, the row number and sensor type are displayed. A green background for the bar graph indicates an input configured as Flow 2.

\$ \$	P	P	P	P	P	Þ	
1 2 \[\frac{1}{2}\] \[\frac{1}{2}\] \[1	3	4	5 7 7		7	8	

If the row is alarming, there will also be a bell displayed in the bar graph. To temporarily disable the alarm, touch and hold the alarming row for three (3) seconds. To re-enable the alarm, touch and hold the bar graph for three (3) seconds. *Note: An alarm will remain disable through an all rows failed or change in lift switch state but will be removed in a power cycle*.

If a row is disabled in the setup menu, it will display with a gray background.

Seeds Page

1

The Seeds Page is available when population sensors are used on an active implement. The Alarm History and Screen Navigation tabs are also visible on the seeds page. On the left side of the screen, Population and Spacing information are displayed. Acre counters, seeding quality, and productivity information are shown in the remaining area of the screen.

Alarm	History					5.3 MPH	radar
Populati	ion	Spacing	Acres 1	Acres 2	Acr	es 3	Home
(seeds/act		(inches)	0.0	0.0	0	.0	
Avg		Avg					Seeds
32.2	2	6.2	Acre/Hr	Singulation 30.9	Sk 38	tips 3.7	Quality
Min (7)	Min (1)	20.7	Spacing CV	Mult	tiples	Flow
31.4	4	5.7	P	22.0	5(/ 	Counts
Max (6	5)	Max (7)					Setup
32.8	B	6.4				-	Demo



The **Population** tile shows the row numbers with the minimum and maximum population as well as the average population across the planter.

Population	
Avg	
32.2	
Min (7)	
31.4	
Max (6)	
32.8	

The **Spacing** tile displays the row numbers with the minimum and maximum distance (in inches) between seeds as well as the average distance (in inches) between seeds across the planter



There are three (3) independent **Acre Counters** available to track the area covered. They can be stopped, started, or reset as needed and the accumulated acres will be saved over a power cycle.

A green triangle indicates the acre counter is running.



A red square indicates the counter is paused.



Pressing the acre counter for 3 seconds will bring up the controls to Start/Stop or Reset each acre counter.



The acre counters will start counting anytime product is being applied in a section. Each section will stop counting anytime product is not being applied in that section. A lift switch can also be used to aid accurate area calculation.

The **Productivity** tile shows the area covered per hour based on the current ground speed and width of the implement.



The **Quality** tile shows the Singulation, Skips, Multiples, and Spacing CV percentages. Per row data of this information is shown on the Quality Page.



Flow Page

The Flow screen is available if an implement is configured to monitor flow rate. The Alarm history and Screen Navigation tabs are visible on the Flow screen. The left side of the screen shows the average flow rate, row with the minimum flow rate, and row with the maximum flow rate for Flow 1. Flow 2, if configured, is immediately to the right of this column.



Three (3) independent acre counters are displayed across the top section. These are shared with the acre counters on the Seed page and can be started, stopped, or reset by pressing the tiles for 3 seconds.

Below the acre counters are the productivity tile and volume counters. Flow 2 counters are only visible if Flow 2 is in the active configuration. The Field Flow counters are intended to measure the amount of volume applied in a field and Total Flow is for tracking across multiples fields, however, they are independent and can be used as such. These volume counters can be paused, resumed, or reset by pressing the tile for 3 seconds.



Tiles with the peel icon can be changed by long pressing the tile and selecting a data option from a pop-up window.



Counts

The Count screen shows a running total of seeds or pulses detected by the monitor. This screen can be used for troubleshooting a faulty sensor or harness. The counts can be reset to at any time and will not affect the rest of the monitor.

The screen below is configured to display Seed, Flow 1, and Flow 2 monitoring for each row.

Sens	or Event (Save	Reset	Close			
S-1	979	F2-3	13946	F1-6	10360		
F1-1	7263	S-4	3916	F2-6	16148		
F2-1	12580	F1-4	8880	S-7	5649		
S-2	1958	F2-4	14680	F1-7	11100		
F1-2	8070	S-5	4895	F2-7	16882		
F2-2	13320	F1-5	9620	S-8	6456		
S-3	2937	F2-5	15414	F1-8	11840		
F1-3	8140	S-6	5874	F2-8	17616		

If the configured application has more than 32 inputs, then navigation arrows are added to the top of the screen to switch between inputs 1-32 and inputs 33-36.

Sense	or Event Co	ounter	«	Save	Reset	Close
S-33	2178					
S-34	2244					
S-35	2310					
S-36	2376					

Set Up

The DM-5750 stores up to four implements at a time to easily switch between different implement configurations. The setup screen has two navigation areas, one along the left side of the screen and a sub-navigation area below the top banner. The Setup Assist button will provide a guide through the necessary steps to configure a monitor.

Implement

To enter implement information, select one of the available implements. The selected implement name will be green, and the information tabs will be blue.

Exit Setu	p s	etup ssist					ravior
Implement	Implement	Displa Assignme	ay Section nents Assignments		Product Sensors		Accessory Sensors
Ontions	Implement Na	ame	Ser	nsors on Row	Rows	Spacing (in)	Width (ft)
Options	Implemen	nt 1		<i>.</i>	10	30.00	25.0
Speed Inputs	Implemer	nt 2		4	36	30.00	90.0
System Info	Implemer	nt 3	4	N 🕺 🕺	8	30.00	20.0
System mo	Implemer	nt 4		Ŷ	6	30.00	15.0
Help		Quick	< Set	Сору	Cle	ear	

To change the implement name, touch the **Implement Name** tab for the active implement. Enter the name using the on-screen keyboard and press **Enter** to save.



Sensors on Row

To set the sensor type select the **Sensors on Row** tab. In the pop-up window select the correct sensors for the application.

Seeds: used for seed population, seed blockage, or dry blockage sensors

Flow 1: used for liquid flow, can be configured as Per Row (flowmeter on every row) or Master Flow (single flow meter used to monitor all rows) *selected configuration will be green*

Flow 2 is only available if Flow 1 is selected.

Note: For liquid applicators that have $\frac{1}{2}$ for 1 $\frac{1}{2}$ rate rows, select Flow 1, Per Row in this step. The odd rate sensors will be configured in a later step.



Number of Rows

Enter the number of rows that will be monitored. If a drill has 24 rows, but only 4 rows have sensors, then the number of rows entered would be 4.

Spacing

Enter the distance (in inches) between each row on the implement

Width

The implement width is automatically calculated using the number of rows entered multiplied by the row spacing entered. This number can be manually entered when needed. For example, a 24-row drill with 7.5 inches per row width with 4 sensors installed would auto calculate a width of 2.5 feet. This value could be changed to 15ft to reflect the actual width of the drill



Quick Set

The **Quick Set** can be used to aid in setting up an implement. If a seed only configuration is desired, change the Sensors on Row to Seeds and then select **Quick Set**. In the pop-up window select **Sensor Detect**. Row spacing will still need to be entered before proceeding to the next step.

	Exit Setu	р	Setup Assist				roviar	
	Quick Set Dis	play A	ssignment	S			bry	
	Automa	tically a	assign Harn	ess R	ows to	Display	5	
	Auto Detect Seed Sensors Default All - Override Seeds							
SI								
			Select type o	f Quick	Set			
S	Sensor Dete	ct	Default	Seeds		Cancel		
	Help		Quick	Set	Сору	Clear		

To copy an implement configuration, chose a configuration to be copied then select the **Copy** button to bring up a window that allows selection of the remaining three implements.

	Exit Setu	o Setup Assist							
S	Implement Copy Modify the Selected Implement configuration by copying from 1 of the other 3 configurations. OR Cancel								
┢									
S	Implement 1	Implement 2	lı	mplement 3	Car	ncel			
	Help	Quick	set	Сору	Clear				

To remove an implement configuration, select the **Clear** button. A warning will pop up and ask to proceed.

	Exit Setu	р	Setup Assist				tor
	Implement C	ear					pry
Ľ	Clear In	nplemer	nt Configu	iratior	1		5
	Yes OR	Cancel					
S							
			Select C	hoice Be	low		
S		Yes			(Cancel	
	Help		Qui	ck Set	Сору	Clear	

Display Assignments

The Display Assignments page shows the configured sensors associated with each row. The type of sensor (population or blockage) as well as any configured flow sensors will be visible on the Display Assignments page.

Exit Setu	Exit Setup Assist								
Implement	Implement	D Assi	Display Assignments		Section Assignments		Product Sensors		essory nsors
Options	1 - 8 Display	9 - 1 1	6 1 2	.7 - 24 3	25 - 3 4	32 5	Next 32 6	Man 7	ial Set
Speed Inputs	Seeds Inputs	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
System Info	Type Flow 1 Inputs	4	4	4	4	Ŷ	4	4	4
Help	Flow 2 Inputs								

Eight rows are visible at one time. Use the tabs to navigate to other rows.



Manual Set

This screen allows for sensor types to be changed, inputs to be skipped or disabled, and manual assignment of implement harness inputs.

	Manual Harness Assignment Associations									
Implen	mplement Type Seed / Flow 1 / Flow 2 Row Count 8									
	Skip	¹ 🍚 1	² 🎝 2	³ 🧼 ₃	⁴ 🍚 4	⁵ ᡐ 5	⁶ 🌳 ₆	Clear		
$\langle \varphi \rangle$	Pop Seeds	⁷ 🧼 ,	° ᡐ 8	¹ 👿 ,	² 👿 ₁₀	³ 👿 ₁₁	⁴ 👿 ₁₂	Cancel		
** **	Flow Seeds	5 13	⁶ 🚺 ₁₄	7 T 15	⁸ 10 16	¹ 2 ₁₇	18	Accept		
1	Liquid Flow 1	19	20	21	22	23	24			
2	Liquid Flow 2	25	26	27	28	29	30			
\bigcirc	Disable	31	32	33	34	35	36			

Each square represents an input into the monitor. The input assignment is indicated by the number in the lower right corner. The configured sensor type is shown in the middle of the square and the row number is displayed in the upper right corner.



A **skipped row** is indicated by a blank square. Skipping a row will shift the inputs to the next input while maintaining the number of rows available. This can be used for split row planters when only planting on half the rows.



A **Disabled** row will not report any population or be used in the average population calculations. It will show up on the Home screen with a dark background and row is used to turn off the row but keep it in the configuration.



To configure an input, touch the input square which will be highlighted in white, and then select the sensor type or change from the menu on the left side of the screen.

The **Clear** button will remove any configured inputs and allow them to be setup as needed.

The **Cancel** button will exit this screen without saving any changes.

The **Accept** button will exit the screen and accept the changes.

Note: For liquid applicator with ½ or 1 ½ rate rows, the implement should be set up with Flow 1, Per Row on the implement setup screen. In the Manual Set screen, change the off-rate rows to Flow 2. The screen below shows a 17-knife applicator with ½ rate nozzles on the outside rows.

	Manual Harness Assignment Associations							
Impler	ment Type		Flow Only		Row Co	ount 📃	17]
	Skip	1 <mark>2</mark> 1	² 🐺 ₂	³ 👿 ₃	4 👿 4	5 👿 5	6 1 1 6	Clear
		7 👿 ₇	8 👖 8	່ 👿 ຊ	10 T 10	¹¹ 👿 ₁₁	¹² 12	Cancel
		¹³ 👿 ₁₃	¹⁴ 14	15 T 19	16 T 16	17 2 17 17	18	Accept
X	Liquid Flow 1	19	20	21	22	23	24	
2	Liquid Flow 2	25	26	27	28	29	30	
\bigcirc	Disable	31	32	33	3 34	35	36	

Section Assignments

The Sections Assignments page allows the user to configure up to 16 sections that will allow assigned groups of inputs to shut off without having the monitor alarm continuously.

To set up sections, Set the Section Selector using the arrows or pop-up screen, then select the Seed, Flow 1, or Flow 2 input that corresponds to that section. Continue this process until all sections are assigned.

Exit Setu	р	Setup Assist							radar
Implement	Implement	E Assi	isplay gnments	Se Assig	ection gnments	Pro Se	oduct nsors	Acc Se	essory nsors
Options	1 - 8				Sectio Select	in ior	-	8	->
Speed Inputs	Display Seeds Inputs	1	2	3	4	5	6	4	8
System Info	Flow 1 Inputs	5	5	5	5	6	6	6	6
Help	Flow 2 Inputs	7	7	7	7	8	8	8	8

The implement above is an 8-row planter with the seed rows split into 4 sections and Flow 1 and Flow 2 products set on half-width sections.

Note: When a section is shut off, it is not included in the acre count calculation

Product Sensors

Product Sensor-Seeds

Population Adjust: In a high-rate application where sensors cannot accurately count the number of seeds being dropped, the Population Adjust feature allows the user to compensate for the extra seeds by raising the population by a desired percentage.

Max Limits rates exceeding the max limit will turn the bar yellow on the Home screen and cause the unit to alarm.

Desired Value is the target population in seeds/acre.

Min Limits: Rates below the min limits will turn red on the Home screen and cause the unit to alarm.

The **Absolute** and **Percent** tabs allow the user to set the limits using a percentage of the desired value or a selected value. The preferred method selection appears in green.





Product Sensor-Flow

A flowmeter type and calibration number must be entered to accurately measure flow rate.

Exit Setup Setup Assist									
Implement	Implement 4)isplay ignments	Section Assignments	Product Sensors	Accessory Sensors			
Options	Seed Select Options	5.	Flow 1	Flow 2					
Speed Inputs	Type Calibration		AE 57	6663 7200	Pulses/Gal				
System Info	Max Limits		1	6.67	%	Absolute			
Help	Desired Value Min Limits		6	6.67	Gallons/Acre %	Percent			

Туре

The monitor is programed with a list of commonly used flowmeter part numbers and their calibration numbers. Choose the correct part flow meter from the drop-down menu and the default calibration number will automatically populate.

Exit Setu	Select Sensor		rodor
	AE6663		
Implement	AE6664	nsors	Sensors
Options	AE6665		
Speed Inputs	AE6667	'Gal	
System Info	AE6668	s/Acre	Absolute
Help	Cancel	1	Percent

If the flowmeter in use is not visible in the list, then select **Custom 1** or **Custom 2** and manually enter the calibration number in pulses per gallon. Select the calibration number and then the **Edit** button. The calibration number for Custom 1 will be the same if used for Flow 1 and Flow 2 rates.



Calibration

Calibration numbers can also be calculated in the monitor after a product is applied and a known volume has been dispensed.

Select Calibration.



Select Calculate.

	Exit Setu	Setup Assist					rodor
	Sensor Calibr	ation for FLO	W 1				, ny
	You may Reset the Default (57200) Edit existing, or Calculate a new value						
S							
S	Default	Edit		Calculate		Cancel	te
	Help	Min Limits	1	.6.67	%		Percent

Enter the known number of gallons applied.

Exit Set	Ente	r Offici	(o lor		
		0.000		Gallons	at Accesson
Implement	1	2	3	Back	rs Sensors
Options	4	5	6	Clear	
Speed Inputs	7	•	0	ESC	
System Info		•		ESC	Absolute
Help	0		•	Enter	Percent

Enter the number of gallons recorded on the monitor.



The monitor will calculate the new calibration number.

Desired Value: target flow rate in gal/acre

Max limits: rates exceeding the max limit will turn the bar yellow on the Home screen and cause the unit to alarm

Min limits: rates below the min limits will turn red on the Home screen and cause the unit to alarm

The **Percent** and **Absolute** tabs allow the user to set the limits using a percentage of the desired value or a selected value. The preferred method selection appears in green.



Accessory Sensors

Hopper

The monitor can accept two hopper level sensors that can be configured to alarm when the sensor is pulled high or pulled low. To enable the sensor, select the **Enable** button. If a second sensor is present, use the arrows to select sensor 2.

Exit Setu	p Se As	etup sist				rodor	
Implement	Implement	Display Assignments	Sec Assign	tion ments	Product Sensors	Accessory Sensors	
Options	Select Options	Hopper			Lift Sv	vitch	
Speed Inputs	Select Hopper	<-	1	->	Input	Enable	
System Info							
Help							

Once the sensor is enabled, it can be set to **Active High** or **Active Low** and the alarm can be enabled or disabled.

Exit Setup Setup Assist							
Implement	Implement	Display Assignments	Sect Assign	ion ments	Product Sensors	Accessory Sensors	
Options	Select Options	Hopper			Lift Sw	vitch	
Speed Inputs	Select Hopper	<-	1	->	Input Alarm	Disable Enable	
System Info	Hopper Type	Active	Low	Acti	ve High		
Help							

Lift switch

The unit can monitor a lift switch input. If no lift switch is connected, this setting should be **Normally Open**. If a lift switch is present the setting should be set to **Normally Closed**, and the switch should be installed in such a way that the contacts are closed when the implement is applying product.



Options

Alarm

The Alarm Volume has 5 settings from off to max volume. The selected level will appear green.



Display

Exit Setu	P Setup Assist			(co.lor		
Implement	Alarm	Display	Misc.	Analysis		
	Select desired Option	s for each param	neter.			
Options	Brightness	Min 2	3 4	5 Max		
Speed Inputs	Display Mode	Day	Night			
System Info	Conversion Units	English	Metric			
Help	Click Volume	Off 1	2 3	Max		

Brightness adjusts the backlight intensity of the display.

Display Mode allows selection of Day or Night mode. Night mode adjusts the color and backlight intensity for easier night viewing.

Conversion Units changes the units from English to Metric.

Click Volume sets the sound level of the click whenever the screen is touched. It can be turned off by selecting the **Off** button.

Misc.

Exit Setu	p Setup Assist				radar
Implement	Alarm	Display	Misc.	Ana	lysis
	Select Options.				
Options	Sensor Sensitivity	Low	Medium	High	
Speed Inputs					
System Info	Auto Pan (Sec)	3	69	12	
Help	Sensor Row Density	y Norma	l Low	High	

Sensor Sensitivity changes the rate at which sensors react to population rate changes. Low sensitivity averages the monitored population over a longer time, rate changes are slower to display.

High sensitivity averages the rate values over a shorter period, rate changes are shown quicker.

Auto Pan (sec) adjusts the time a single screen is shown before switching to the other rows when the number of configured rows exceeds the maximum number of rows on one Home screen.

Sensor Row Density adjusts how many rows are displayed on the Home screen. Normal setting will show up to 16 rows across one row, low will display up to 8 rows, high will display up to 18 rows. This can be helpful to provide a larger area to select rows to see the per row information.

Analysis



History Hysteresis: The time between failures detected by a sensor before the failure is displayed in the Alarm History Area. Once the set number of seconds passes from the last failure and a new failure is detected, an icon will be displayed. If a second failure of a row happens within the set time, the second failure will be ignored and not displayed.

Start Suppress Time: The time that is used to allow the system to stabilize once application resumes. Row failures are ignored and not stored during this time.

Speed Input

Select



Primary Source: Select Manual or External Speed Source

Speed Input Alarm: The monitor will alarm when the selected MPH has been exceeded

External Speed Calibration Procedure

It is recommended to use a 400 ft course for the most accurate speed reading.



Mark off the measured course. Drive at a consistent speed past the first flag and hit **Start**. Maintain speed past the second flag, select the **End** button.



The monitor will populate the calibration number for each run, the active run is indicated by the arrow to the left of the calibration numbers.

Exit Setu	p Setup Assist			
Implement	Select	External Speed		
	Enter Known Distance, pe	rform Calibra	ation Runs.	
Options	Known Distance	Run	Pulses/Distance	
	400.0 ft	1	-> 16197.4	
Speed Inputs		2	16890.3	
	Start	3	16265.0	
System Info	o car c	4	16788.1	
		Cal	16535.2	
Help	Save Clear			

Once the four passes have been completed, select the **Save** button to store the new calibration number. The calibration number will be highlighted in blue when it has been saved. A red highlighted number indicates the calibration has not been saved.

If a calibration run needs to be removed from the list, select the calibration number, then select the **Clear** button. A pop-up window will ask to clear **All**, **Selected** or **Cancel**.

	Exit Setup		Setup Assist				rodor	
	Speed Input Setup							
	You can Clear ALL entries, or Just the Selected One.							
S								
s	All		Press Selection below					
	Help	Save	e Clea	ar	Cal	16353.1		

Calibration numbers can also be entered by selecting the Cal number and entering the number in the pop-up screen.

Exit Set	E	Enter Radar Calibration					
	1	.6074.	5	p/distance			
Implement				Deale	ial Speed		
	1	2	5	Васк			
Options		_			Distance		
	4	5	6	Clear			
Speed Inputs				·			
6 1 6	7	8	9	ESC			
System Info							
Helm)		Enter	74.5		
пер							

If a 400-foot course is not available, this distance can be shortened by selecting the **distance** and changing this in the pop-up window. The longer the course, the more accurate the calibration will be.

Exit Set	Ent	ter Kno			
		400.0		feet	
Implement					ial Speed
	1	2	3	Back	
Options			6		Distance
	4	5		Clear	53.1
Speed Inputs					
	7	8	9	ESC	
System Info					
	(`		Enter	53.1
Help	U			Enter	5511
	,	_			

Systems Info

The System Info screen displays software information on the monitor and internal voltage levels. The top row is the display portion of the monitor, and the second row is the internal processor that controls the row power supplies and sensor information.

Exit Setu	р	Se As	tup sist				(adar
Implement			Syst	tem In	fo		Sa	ive
	Pos	Module	SN	App Vers	Boot Vers	Bat	Pwr A	Pwr B
Options		Monitor	5650001234	03.00.601	01.00.1	12.04		
		Internal		01.01.530	01.02.530	12.12	8.08	8.09
Speed Inputs								
System Info								
Help								

Column	Monitor	Internal
Pos	N/A	N/A
Module	Display Processor	Sensor Processor
SN	Serial Number of Monitor	N/A
App Vers	Application software version	Application software version
Boot Vers	Boot block version	Boot block version
Bat	Input Battery Voltage	Input Battery Voltage
Pwr A	N/A	Power Supply A Voltage
Pwr B	N/A	Power Supply B Voltage

Note: Voltage levels are at the monitor

Help

About

The About page shows the monitor serial number, software version, and boot block version.



Assistance

The contact information in the Assistance tab is available for additional support. A QR code is provided for access to this manual.

Exit Setu	p Setup Assist		
Implement	About	Assistance	Diagnostics
Options			Scan for
Speed Inputs		MONOSEM 1001 Blake Street Edwardsville, KS 66111 (913) 438-1700	Manual
System Info		www.monosemusa.com	
Help			

Diagnostics

The Diagnostics screen allows for extra features to be available. If necessary, a code will be provided. Please contact your dealer.



Console Pinouts

Monitor Power

Description	4-Pin Console	Power
12V DC In	1	1
Ground	2	3
Alarm Out Positive	3	
Alarm Out Ground	4	

Radar

Pin	Description
1	Negative
2	Ground Speed Signal
3	12V Power
4	Radar Sense

Cab Harness

Description	30-Pin Console	18-Pin Console	37-Pin Row 1-32	37-Pin Rows 33-36
Row Input 1	A1		1	
Row Input 2	A2		2	
Row Input 3	A3		3	
Row Input 4	B1		4	
Row Input 5	B2		5	
Row Input 6	B3		6	
Row Input 7	C1		7	

Description	30-Pin Console	18-Pin Console	37-Pin Row 1-32	37-Pin Rows 33-36
Row Input 8	C2		8	
Row Input 9	C3		9	
Row Input 10	D1		10	
Row Input 11	D2		11	
Row Input 12	D3		12	
Row Input 13	E1		13	
Row Input 14	E2		14	
Row Input 15	E3		15	
Row Input 16	F1		16	
Row Input 17	F2		17	
Row Input 18	F3		18	
Row Input 19	G1		19	
Row Input 20	G2		20	
Row Input 21	G3		21	
Row Input 22	H1		22	
Row Input 23	H2		23	
Row Input 24	H3		28	
Row Input 25		A1	29	
Row Input 26		A2	30	
Row Input 27		A3	31	
Row Input 28		B1	32	
Row Input 29		B2	33	
Row Input 30		B3	34	
Row Input 31		C1	35	
Row Input 32		C2	36	

Description	30-Pin Console	18-Pin Console	37-Pin Row 1-32	37-Pin Rows 33-36
Row Input 33		C3		1
Row Input 34		D1		2
Row Input 35		D2		3
Row Input 36		D3		4
8V Power A	К2		24	
8V Negative A	КЗ		26	
8V Power B		F2	25	24,25
8V Negative B		F3	27	26,27
Hopper 1		F1		29
Hopper 2		E2		30
Lift Switch	K1			



1001 Blake Street Edwardsville, KS 66111 (913) 438-1700